
Council

Date: Tuesday, 10th April, 2018
Time: 7.30 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Uttlesford District Council, Council Offices, London 

Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor G Sell
Members: Councillors A Anjum, K Artus, H Asker, G Barker, S Barker, 

R Chambers, J Davey, P Davies, A Dean, P Fairhurst, T Farthing, 
M Felton, M Foley, J Freeman, R Freeman, A Gerard, T Goddard, 
J Gordon, N Hargreaves, S Harris, E Hicks, S Howell, D Jones, 
T Knight, G LeCount, P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, J Lodge, 
J Loughlin, A Mills, S Morris, E Oliver, V Ranger, J Redfern, H Rolfe, 
H Ryles and L Wells (Vice-Chair)

Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting.

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies and declarations of interest.

2 Minutes of the previous meeting 5 - 26

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 2018. 

Public Document Pack



3 Chairman's Announcements

To receive any announcements from the Chairman.

4 Reports from the Leader and Members of the Executive

To receive matters of report from the Leader and members of the 
Executive.

5 Questions to the Leader, Members of the Executive and 
Committee Chairmen (up to 15 minutes)

To receive any questions from members for the Executive and 
committee chairmen.

6 Matters received about joint arrangements and external 
organisations

To consider any matters received concerning joint arrangements 
and external organisations.

7 Governance, Audit and Performance Committee Annual 
Report 2017/18

27 - 30

To receive the annual report of the Governance, Audit and 
Performance Committee.  The report will be presented by Councillor 
Oliver. 

8 Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18 31 - 34

To receive the annual report of the Scrutiny Committee presented 
by Councillor Dean.

9 Notice of motion received from Councillors Howell and 
Loughlin - Sky Lanterns and Helium Balloons

35 - 36



To consider the following motion received on notice from Councillors 
Howell and Loughlin regarding sky lanterns and helium balloons:

1. “To support a ban on the release of sky lanterns and helium 
balloons.

2. To review the terms under which Council land and premises 
are let to the public with a view to prohibiting their release;

3. To write to Town and Parish Councils and event venues in 
Uttlesford highlighting the risks and urging them to introduce 
voluntary bans;

4. To write to Uttlesford’s MP urging action at a national level. 

5. To display publicity in Council premises raising awareness of 
the risks posed. 

6. To treat reports of release of sky lanterns and helium 
balloons as potential littering offences.” 

Please note the additional text submitted in support of the motion as 
set out in the attached document.

10 Notice of motion received from Councillor Light - Stansted 
Airport planning application process

“This Council is committed to an objective, transparent and 
democratic process in planning. It must allow residents, councillors 
and all interested parties sufficient time and ample opportunities to 
be heard and to fully discuss and understand the implications of the 
current Stansted Airport planning application for extending its 
capacity.

The Council requests officers to review as soon as possible the 
process and timetable and to inform the Council and public of key 
milestones in the evaluation process that will ensure the above 
principles are met before the application is submitted to the 
Planning Committee for determination.”

11 Any other business considered to be urgent

To consider any business not listed on the agenda the Chairman 
determines should be considered as a matter of urgency.



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in 
relation to this meeting please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 
510433/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings.  You will need to register with 
the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts.  Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which 
is open to the public.  Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence 
of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for 
some other reason.  You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are 
discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510430/433 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510433, 510369 or 510548 

Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


COUNCIL held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON 
ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER on THURSDAY, 22 FEBRUARY 2018 
at 7.30 pm

Present: Councillor G Sell (Chairman)

Councillors K Artus, H Asker, G Barker, S Barker, R Chambers, 
J Davey, P Davies, A Dean, P Fairhurst, T Farthing, M Felton, 
M Foley, R Freeman, A Gerard, J Gordon, N Hargreaves, 
S Harris, E Hicks, S Howell, D Jones, T Knight, G LeCount, 
P Lees, B Light, J Lodge, J Loughlin, A Mills, S Morris, E Oliver, 
V Ranger, J Redfern, H Rolfe, H Ryles and L Wells

Officers in 
attendance:

Dawn French (Chief Executive), Rebecca Dobson (Principal 
Democratic Services Officer), Angela Knight (Assistant Director - 
Resources), Simon Pugh (Assistant Director - Legal and 
Governance), Adrian Webb (Director – Finance and Corporate 
Services) and Nicola Wittman (Assistant Director – ICT and 
Facilities)

C56  MOTION TO REPLACE THE CHAIRMAN OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Public Speaking

Statements were made by the following public speakers, and summaries of 
statements are appended to these minutes:  Susan Perry, Sophie Durlacher, 
Martin Day, Katy Mendes-Day, Janina Vigurs, Sue Lawson, Justin Rhodes, 
Sarah Ellis, Doug Perry, Amelie Gerard, Angela Foster and Anthony Robertson.  

The Chairman changed the order of the agenda to bring forward the item 
regarding the chairmanship of the Standards Committee.  

Councillor Asker queried why the agenda papers had been reissued with a 
change to the wording of the motion. 

The Chief Executive said the initial circulation of the agenda did not correctly 
record the wording of the motion submitted by Councillor Rolfe.  It had been 
reissued with the correct wording, which had been submitted by Councillor Rolfe 
before the deadline.    

Councillor Rolfe introduced the motion which sought to replace the Chairman of 
the Standards Committee, in light of comments Councillor Knight had made in 
two radio interviews on the subject of harassment.  He acknowledged Councillor 
Knight’s contribution as a district councillor for 13 years but said that the 
comments made were inconsistent with her role of Chairman of the Council’s 
Standards Committee.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Councillor Dean seconded the motion.  The issue was not one of freedom of 
speech but of whether the views she had expressed compromised Councillor 
Knight’s ability as Chairman of Standards Committee to consider complaints of 
harassment similar to those on which she had commented.  In his view the 
Council should appoint a new Standards Committee chairman.  

Councillor Lodge said he spoke on behalf of the Residents for Uttlesford Group, 
which had a consolidated view.  Freedom of speech was an important principle 
but councillors also had responsibilities.  Equality was another important 
principle.  Decisive action was needed, and the Residents Group had submitted 
its own motion, proposing the establishment of an Equality Committee.  

Councillor Harris said she would abstain from the vote on replacement of the 
Chairman of the Standards Committee as she felt anyone had the right to a 
private life, and that she considered Councillor Knight to be a victim of 
harassment herself. 

Councillor Jones said he was opposed to the motion primarily due to the way the 
matter had been handled, and he considered Councillor Knight should have 
been given the opportunity to meet with people and explain the views she had 
expressed, to allow a fair hearing.  

Councillor Loughlin said she respected Councillor Knight, but was concerned at 
the comments she had made in public, given her position as Chairman of the 
Standards Committee.  Public perception was the main issue.  She hoped 
Councillor Knight remained on the Standards Committee as she was a valuable 
member of it.  

Councillor Ranger said Councillor Knight’s comments had shown a lack of 
judgment, and she should not chair the Standards Committee.  

Councillor Redfern said whilst she had agonised over her response, she had to 
support the motion in view of the comment Councillor Knight had made that 
groping did not constitute sexual harassment.  

Councillor Knight asked for a short break to organise her papers before 
speaking.  

The meeting was adjourned at 8.35pm for 10 minutes.  

On the resumption of the meeting, Councillor Knight said she refused to resign 
as Chairman of Standards Committee, which should have a balance of views.  
She felt she had not been given the opportunity to discuss the matter, and felt 
there had been a hidden agenda with deliberate misinterpretation of her 
comments, which could have been handled better.  She had spoken as an 
individual; she asked that people get their facts right.  Those who had read the 
entirety of the comments she had made realised she was being quoted out of 
context, and she had received several apologies from members of the Yummy 
Mummies group.  Facebook had taken down several comments.  Her issue was 
that she considered there had been lobbying behind the scenes with no attempt 
to establish the truth.  She had not done anything wrong, had fought for equality 

Page 6



of opportunity for working women, and was horrified that a group such as the 
Yummy Mummies seemed to be holding the Council to ransom.  

The Chairman asked Councillor Knight to bring her comments to a close. 

Councillor Knight said she had been invited to speak and had not finished.  She 
had been contacted by only four colleagues.  She had received a number of 
distinguished awards for her work, including work abroad.  She said that if she 
could not exercise her right to freedom of speech she would never have become 
a councillor.  

Councillor Rolfe, in reply, said the motion was not personal, and was not about 
Councillor Knight’s other abilities.  It was not about the Facebook campaign and 
the Council did not condone any sort of bullying.  There was no hidden agenda.  
The transcripts of the interviews indicated views which were not consistent with 
the values of the Council which the Chairman of Standards Committee should 
uphold.  

Councillor Rolfe said, with the Chairman’s agreement, that he wished the motion 
to be put with paragraphs 1 – 4 as one vote.  

Councillor Knight asked for clarification on procedure, as she had understood 
that she could make a speech and could then speak to reply to the motion.  

The Chairman said he thought Councillor Knight had already made her reply to 
the motion.  Councillor Knight said this was her speech and that she had been 
told she could speak for five minutes and then be able to reply.  

The Chairman said she had already spoken for 10 minutes, and asked that she 
be brief.  

Councillor Knight said she wished to put on record what she had said.  She had 
been quoted incorrectly as saying that sexual harassment was “hilarious”, but 
her comment related to the journalist’s article and not to sexual harassment.  
She had not called the hostesses employed at the Presidents’ Club dinner 
“airheads”.  Her comment was that if, when told that the job involved dressing in 
a certain way for a men only event, the women did not realise what sort of job it 
was, then they had to be “airheads”.  

The Chairman said the meeting would move to the vote but Councillor Knight 
said she had been advised that she would be able to speak further in reply.  The 
Chairman said the right of reply meant the right of reply to the debate and that 
Councillor Knight had already had over 5 minutes to speak in reply.   

The Chief Executive said the advice given was that participants could each 
speak for 5 minutes and that Councillor Knight, as any member could, had a 
right of reply where there was a factual inaccuracy or to make a personal 
statement.  

Councillor Knight said this was a kangaroo court.

Page 7



Paragraphs 1 to 4 of the motion were put to the vote, which was carried as 
follows, with 17 votes in favour, 2 against and 4 members stating that they were 
abstaining.  
. 

RESOLVED that

1. Uttlesford District Council affirms its belief that everyone has 
the right to be treated with dignity and respect, whether in the 
workplace or beyond, which includes not being subject to 
harassment.  

The Council notes the wide definition of harassment contained 
in the Equality Act 2010, which includes unwanted conduct that 
has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, 
degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for a person or 
violating their dignity.

2. The Council also notes and rejects recent comments made by 
Councillor Tina Knight in two radio interviews which put forward 
a much narrower view of harassment, excluding much of the 
behaviour defined as harassment by the Equality Act, and 
which appeared to condone the behaviour of guests at the 
Presidents’ Club Dinner. 

3. The Council further notes that the Standards Committee may 
have to deal with complaints of harassment against councillors 
at district, town or parish level within Uttlesford.

4.  In the light of the above, the Council does not feel that 
Councillor Knight’s comments were consistent with the role of 
Chairman of its Standards Committee and resolves to remove 
her from this office. 

The Council then moved to consider part 5 of the motion and Councillor Rolfe 
nominated Councillor Jones as the new Chairman of the Standards Committee. 
Councillor Loughlin seconded the nomination.  

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Jones as Chairman of the 
Standards Committee.  

Councillor Lodge asked the Chairman to bring forward the motion on the 
establishment of an Equalities Committee for consideration as the next item. 

The Chairman said the item would be taken in the order it appeared on the 
agenda.

C57  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Page 8



Apologies were received from Councillors Anjum, J Freeman and Lemon. 

Councillor R Freeman declared a personal interest in relation to any items 
involving Saffron Walden in that he was a member of Saffron Walden Town 
Council.  

Councillor S Barker declared a personal interest in relation to the budget items, 
in that she was a member of Essex County Council.

C58  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2017 were received and 
approved as an accurate record subject to the following amendment:  

Minute C50:  the surname of Mary Rowe had been spelled wrongly.  

C59  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Chairman thanked members for attending his Civic Dinner, and thanked 
officers for arrangements made to enable the event to take place at Chesterford 
Research Park.  He had received a letter from the Lord Lieutenant saying how 
much he had enjoyed the dinner and how important Chesterford Research Park 
would be as an asset for the Council.  He had also attended a civic dinner given 
by the Chairman of Essex County Council.  He had attended a production of The 
Wizard of Oz at Saffron Walden County High School, which had been fantastic.  
He reported on a meeting of Essex Air Cadets.  He said the meal had been 
prepared by students at Waltham Forest, and hoped that future students at 
Stansted Airport College would cater for such events one day. 

The Chairman said it was the 100th anniversary of women getting votes.  He also 
noted it would be the 100th anniversary of World War 1 in November.  The Lord 
Lieutenant had asked him to assist with finding someone with Commonwealth 
connections to participate in Commonwealth Day on 12 March, so members 
should please let him know if they knew of anyone. 

The Chairman said he wished particularly to thank Susan Kempster, Melanie 
Maguire and Dan Barden for the help they had given in connection with the Civic 
Dinner.  He said £3,500 had been raised for two charities, Support for Sight and 
the Essex Wildlife Trust.    

C60  REPORTS FROM THE LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

Councillor Rolfe said he had no announcements to make. 

C61  QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER, MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE AND 
COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN (UP TO 15 MINUTES) 

Page 9



Councillor Foley asked whether the Leader had had the opportunity to look at the 
recent CPRE funded report, regarding large numbers of brownfield sites. 

Councillor Rolfe said there were not many brownfield sites in Uttlesford, other 
than at Carver Barracks which had been discussed at Council before and 
represented an opportunity.  He asked that the report be sent to him.  

Councillor Dean asked Councillor Ryles as Portfolio Holder for Economic 
Development how much income the Council would receive in the current 
financial year 2017/18 in Stansted’s Lower Street car park from the owners of 
The Maltings and private apartments, and would have been the equivalent 
income from parking charges for those spaces for the years 2018/19 and 
2019/20.  

Councillor Ryles said the spaces were leased for 21 years, the first two years 
rent-free.  The first rent would start to be payable on 2 December 2018.  
Residential spaces would pay approximately £12,000 and medical spaces a 
similar amount.  

Councillor Dean said it was a pity the agreement was for zero rent for two years.  

C62  MATTERS RECEIVED ABOUT JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND EXTERNAL 
ORGANISATIONS 

The Chairman said no matters about joint arrangements or external 
organisations had been notified to him.

C63  MEMBERS' SCHEME OF ALLOWANCES 2018/19 

The Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel, David Brunwin, 
introduced the recommendations of the Panel’s report on the Scheme of 
Member Allowances.

He summarised the main three recommendations, the increase of 1% in the 
basic allowance and special responsibility allowances; the establishing of a 
special responsibility allowance (“SRA”) for members of the Licensing and 
Environmental Health Committee; and the adoption of a revised scheme for 
reimbursement of refreshments and travel costs. 

He said the Panel had decided not to recommend linking the increase in the 
basic allowance and SRAs to future local government pay awards but to 
continue proposing regular modest increases in the level of the basic allowance, 
as this was seen to be preferable to proposing larger increases less often.  
Regarding the new SRA for members of the Licensing and Environmental Health 
Committee, it was apparent that the workload of the committee was not shared 
equally by all its members.  Following an interview with the Chairman of that 
Committee, Councillor Chambers, a modest SRA was recommended to reflect 
the commitment and responsibility which the role involved and the need to be 

Page 10



available for unscheduled meetings at fairly short notice.  Regarding the changes 
to the scheme of allowances for travel, meals and refreshments, the 
recommendations made it clear that hospitality for guests would not be 
reimbursed, and set limits to the amounts which could be claimed.  

Consideration of the introduction of allowances for substitutes was given, but the 
Panel felt the substitute system needed to have been underway for longer before 
it could reach any conclusions about payment to the members concerned, and 
intended to return to this subject.  

The Panel also considered the role of deputies, but felt there was no justification 
for an SRA given that collective decision making tended to operate.  

The Panel finally supported the Council’s intention to fund all elected councillors 
as “data controllers” in order to cover their personal liability when conducting 
Council business.   

The Chairman thanked David Brunwin and the panel members for their work 
during the past few months.  

Councillor Chambers also thanked the panel, in particular for taking notice of his 
comments regarding the Licensing and Environmental Health Committee.  It was 
understood that not all members were able to attend the extraordinary meetings 
of the Committee, but the introduction of a small Special Responsibility 
Allowance was a welcome recognition for those members who attended those 
meetings.  He proposed the recommendations.  

Councillor Rolfe seconded the recommendations.  

Councillor Morris spoke as a member of the Licensing and Environmental Health 
Committee.  She said she had had to return to a day job, and that often could not 
attend the extraordinary committee meetings, but supported the new Special 
Responsibility Allowance.  However, given that many residents endured 
budgetary pressures, she could not support the increase in allowances overall.

Councillor Rolfe thanked the Independent Remuneration Panel for their 
dedication.  External review of remuneration was important, and their 
recommendations should be followed unless there was disagreement.  He 
agreed that allowances should keep pace with public sector pay awards, in a 
consistent and controlled manner.  

The Chairman thanked the Panel for their work.  

RESOLVED  that
1 the Council adopts the recommended scheme of allowances for 
the year 2018/19:

Type of allowance Recommended 
£

Page 11



Basic allowance
5,151 (1% increase to be applied)

Special Responsibility 
Allowances

As Special Responsibility Allowances 
are expressed as a multiplier of the 
Basic Allowance, the 
recommendation is that all would be 
adjusted to reflect the proposed 1% 
increase in the Basic Allowance.  
No changes are proposed to the 
multiplier rates to be applied. 
However, a new SRA is proposed for 
members of the Licensing 
Committee, based on a threshold of 
attendance at Licensing panel 
meetings (see below for further 
details).

Chairman 4,121 + civic expenses

Vice-Chairman 2,060 

Leader 12,620 

Deputy Leader 6,696 
Portfolio Holders 6,181 
Chairmen of overview/
scrutiny and ordinary 
committees

3,606 

Planning Committee 
Chairman

3,863 

Planning Committee 
members

475.50 

Licensing & Environmental 
Health Committee 
Chairman

3,863 

Standards Committee 
Chairman

2,060 

Main opposition group 
leader

3,606 

Other opposition group 
leader(s)

2,060 

Independent members of 
Standards Committee

515 

Page 12



Panel members of 
Independent 
Remuneration Panel

515 

All other elements of the scheme to remain unchanged; only one SRA to be 
payable to a member at any one time, being the higher of the two or more 
allowances to which the member is entitled.  

2.  A new allowance of £237.75 be paid for Licensing and Environmental Health 
Committee members, based on a threshold calculated as follows:  in a municipal 
year when at least ten meetings of the Committee take place in a purely 
regulatory capacity, a payment will be made of a Special Responsibility 
Allowance to committee members attending at least 50% of those meetings.  

(i) The SRA payable in the circumstances set out in 2 above will be the 
equivalent of three days at the daily rate (calculated by dividing the basic 
allowance by 65, eight hour days)
(ii) The allowance will not be made to the Chairman of the Committee as a 
separate SRA is paid to the Chairman, and is subject to the rule that only 
one SRA is payable to a member at any one time (the higher of the two or 
more to which a member is entitled).

3. To include in the scheme of allowances limits to the amount that can be 
claimed for meals and refreshments as set out below, and to make it clear 
that claims for hospitality for guests are not permitted: 

Allowance Rate
Breakfast £7.21
Lunch £9.95
Tea £3.94
Evening meal £12.33

C64  CORPORATE PLAN 2018 - 2022 

The Leader presented a report on the Corporate Plan 2018-2022, which had 
been considered at the meeting of Cabinet on 15 February 2018.  He referred to 
the themes of the corporate plan which he trusted all members had read, and the 
delivery plan as set out in the report.

RESOLVED  to approve the Corporate Plan for 2018-2022, 
containing the Council’s vision and priorities.

C65  INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

Councillor Howell introduced a report on the investment strategy 2018/19, which 
had been endorsed by the Scrutiny Committee.  He said it was a requirement for 
the Council to set an annual investment strategy.  It was an important first step in 
setting out a framework.

Page 13



At this point in the meeting, the Chairman sought the view of members in 
accordance with Rule 8 as to continuing the meeting in light of Rule 8 regarding 
the continuation of meetings beyond two hours.  A vote was taken. 

RESOLVED to continue the consideration of all business on the 
agenda.  

RESOLVED  to approve the Investment Strategy 2018/19.  

C66  BUDGET 2018/19 

Councillor Howell thanked the Director of Finance and Corporate Services and 
the Assistant Director – Resources for their hard work in producing the budget 
reports.  He said that, subject to the wish of members, this report enabled a 
single vote to be taken, on all items within the budget, other than the Investment 
Strategy, which was not part of the budget, and the General Fund Budget and 
Council Tax item, on which a separate vote was required.  

Councillor Howell introduced the budget reports, highlighting the Equality Impact 
Assessments, and the fact that the reports had been considered by Scrutiny and 
Cabinet.  He emphasised certain points, including the fact that the strategy to 
pursue garden communities would require ongoing investment.  He thanked his 
predecessor, Councillor Chambers, and put the motion.  

Councillor Chambers seconded the motion.  

Councillor Morris asked a question regarding taxi and licensing fees, which had 
been the subject of a consultation, the closing date of which was today.  She 
asked how, in view of the timescale, any representations made during the 
consultation would be considered, and therefore wished to know how it was 
possible to include in the budget resolution the increase in fees.  

Councillor Howell said the budget would not start until April, by which time the 
consultation would have concluded, and although no pre-judgment of the 
decision of the Licensing and Environmental Health Committee on fees and 
charges was possible, the budget had been prepared on the assumption that the 
increases in fees were adopted.  If it transpired the increase in fees was not 
adopted, then efficiencies would have to be found somewhere else. 

Councillor Chambers as Chairman of the Licensing and Environmental Health 
Committee confirmed the figures were still out to consultation, but there would be 
sufficient money within the budget to accommodate a different decision on fees 
than that proposed in the consultation.  

Councillor Dean said he had many questions, but in view of the hour, he 
confirmed he supported the budget, and would therefore make only two points.  
He asked that next year the budget reports include graphic representation of 
information to enable easier understanding of trends; and in respect of funding of 

Page 14



PCSOs, he asked that reasonable efforts be made to secure more than one 
PCSO. 

Further members’ questions were put as follows:   

Councillor Artus asked what the maximum reserve for Garden Communities 
would be.  

Councillor Hargreaves asked whether business rates income would be ring-
fenced, and requested that the Council Tax letters make it clear as to which 
element related to District Council services and which to Essex County Council.  

Councillor Howell said he agreed with the suggestion for budget reports to 
include charts.  Regarding PCSOs, it was the intention to maximise the funding 
allocated and with match funding from local communities he hoped that would 
allow more than one PCSO to operate, depending on timings and engagement 
of personnel.  Regarding garden communities the report set out reference in the 
General Fund Reserve the amount of £105,000 per annum from 2018/19 to 
2022/23 for this purpose.  Regarding Business Rates retention, this question had 
also been raised at the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee; and, as he would 
need to consider his response to it, he would return to that Committee to address 
that point. Regarding the Council Tax letter, he said the information in that letter 
was already set out to show the division of costs, and was given in a statutory 
format.  However, members could emphasise to their communities that this 
Council was one of the lowest cost councils in Essex, and the District Council 
element was only 9% of the overall amount of Council Tax. 

Councillor Redfern gave an update on existing development of sheltered housing 
schemes and forthcoming new development projects.  

Councillor Lees said the amount allocated to litter bins would not increase for the 
next five years, which was of concern.  She also noted that in new developments 
litter bin collection seemed to be left to the relevant parish council.  

Councillor Howell said the Council did provide in the budget for the increase in 
housing through the Medium Term Financial Strategy, and referred members to 
provision in year 5.  Regarding the provision and collection of new litter bins, he 
recommended taking up specific enquiries with officers.  

The Director of Finance and Corporate Services confirmed members should 
engage with officers regarding any problems regarding the provision of litter bins 
in new developments.  Regarding the increase allowed for in year 5 of the 
budget for bin collection, this was intended to anticipate a new round of bin 
collection arising from new development.  

The Chairman thanked Councillor Howell for the presentation of the budget 
report.  He declared an interest in respect of the PCSO provision, in that 
Stansted, Elsenham and Henham parish councils had expressed interest in this 
service.  He also noted the retention for members of the new homes bonus.  He 
said he was the Council’s representative on Uttlesford Community Travel which 

Page 15



did good work, and he therefore would encourage any member who had funds 
left this year to consider this voluntary organisation.  

The reports being put to the vote, it was RESOLVED that in respect of the 
recommendations in the following reports: 

Robustness of Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves, and the Reserves 
Strategy, the Council: 

a. Take account of the advice in the report when determining the 2018/19 
General Fund budget and Council Tax.

b. Approve the risk assessment relating to the robustness of estimates as 
detailed in the report

c. Set the minimum safe contingency level for 2018/19 at £1.402 million in 
line with the specified calculation detailed in point 9 and this to be held in 
the Working Balance Reserve.

d. Approve no transfers to or from the Working Balance should be built into 
the 2018/19 budget outside of maintaining the minimum safe contingency 
level.

e. Adopt the attached Reserves Strategy.

Medium Term Financial Strategy, approve the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. 

Treasury Management Strategy, approve the Treasury Management Strategy 
and appendices. 

Capital Programme 2018/19 – 2022/23, approve the Five Year Capital 
Programme.  

Housing Revenue Account 2018/19, approve the Housing Revenue Account 
and 5 year forecast.   

C67  ROBUSTNESS OF RESERVES AND ADEQUACY OF ESTIMATES 2018/19 

The resolution was taken as part of the Budget 2018/19 report, as shown in the 
minute for that item (above).  

C68  MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2018/19 

The resolution was taken as part of the Budget 2018/19 report, as shown in the 
minute for that item (above).  

C69  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018/19 

Page 16



The resolution was taken as part of the Budget 2018/19 report, as shown in the 
minute for that item (above).  

C70  CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 - 2022/23 

The resolution was taken as part of the Budget 2018/19 report, as shown in the 
minute for that item (above).  

C71  HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2018/19 

The resolution was taken as part of the Budget 2018/19 report, as shown in the 
minute for that item (above).  

C72  GENERAL FUND BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX 2018/19 

Councillor Howell presented the report, which was seconded by Councillor 
Chambers.  A recorded vote was taken, the outcome being as follows:  

For the motion:  Councillors Artus, Asker, G Barker, S Barker, Chambers, Davey, 
Davies, Dean, Fairhurst, Farthing, Felton, Foley, R Freeman, Gerard, Gordon, 
Hargreaves, Harris, Hicks, Howell, Jones, LeCount, Lees, Lodge, Loughlin, Mills, 
Morris, Oliver, Ranger, Redfern, Rolfe, Ryles, Sell and Wells. 

Against the motion:  Cllr Light.

Abstained:  no abstentions were recorded.

The motion was passed by 33 votes to one against.

RESOLVED to approve:

1. The Council Tax resolution set out in appendix G to the report; 
2. The General Fund Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own 

purposes for 2018/19 (excluding town/parish precepts) of £5,330,374 as 
summarised in paragraphs 17 – 24 of the report, an increase of 2.99% on 
the average band D equivalent.

3. To approve the schedule of fees and charges as set out in Appendix F of 
the report.

C73  PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 2018/19 

Members having considered the report which was presented by Councillor 
Howell, it was 

RESOLVED to approve the Procurement Strategy 2018/19. 

Page 17



C74  BUSINESS RATE RELIEF POLICY AMENDMENTS 2017/18 

Members having considered the report which was presented by Councillor 
Howell, it was 

RESOLVED to approve the amendments to the criteria of the 
Business Rates Relief Schemes as follows: 

a) that the Revaluation Relief Scheme is awarded automatically to 
qualifying businesses, by withdrawing the application process.

b) that the Pub Relief is awarded after all other reliefs have been 
applied.

C75  PAY POLICY 

Members having considered the report which was presented by Councillor 
Howell, it was 

RESOLVED to approve the Pay Policy as set out in the report.

C76  APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE CONSERVATIVE MEMBER OF 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Members having considered a proposal to appoint Councillor Farthing as a 
substitute member on Planning Committee, in place of Councillor Ranger, it was 

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Farthing as a substitute 
Conservative member to Planning Committee.

C77  APPOINTMENT OF MONITORING OFFICER 

Councillor Howell presented a report proposing the continuation of appointment 
of Mr Simon Pugh as the Council’s Monitoring Officer, following his appointment 
to the permanent position of Assistant Director – Governance and Legal. 

Councillor Chambers seconded the motion.

RESOLVED that the Council continue the appointment of Mr 
Simon Pugh as Monitoring Officer and continue the delegation of 
power to grant dispensations under s.33 Local Government Act 
2011 to district, parish and town councillors who have disclosable 
pecuniary interests to speak and/or vote on issues relating to such 
interests and to grant dispensations under the Code of Conduct to 
district, parish and town councillors with other pecuniary interests 
to speak and/or vote on issues relating to such interests.

Page 18



C78  COMMITTEE TIMETABLE 2018/19 

The motion to adopt the timetable of meetings for the Council and its committees 
for the year 2018/19 was proposed and duly seconded.

RESOLVED to adopt the timetable of meetings for the year 
2018/19.

C79  ELECTION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 

Councillor Oliver presented a report seeking adoption of an amendment to the 
constitution regarding the election of the Chairman and Vice Chairman.  

Councillor Hargreaves said he supported the motion as when he had first joined 
the Council, he had felt strongly that new councillors should participate in the 
nominations for these positions.  

RESOLVED  to adopt the changes to Article 5 of the Council’s 
Constitution as follows:  

5.1.1. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be elected by the Council annually 
as the first business at its annual meeting.

5.1.2. Nominations for the posts of Chairman and Vice- Chairman for the Council 
year shall be made at the last ordinary meeting of the Council prior to the annual 
meeting.

and at the annual meeting the Chairman and Vice- Chairman shall be elected 
from those so nominated. If any person nominated as Chairman or Vice-
Chairman shall no longer be a Member of the Council at the date of the annual 
meeting or informs the Chief Executive that he or she no longer wishes to be 
considered for such office at or before the annual meeting then alternative 
candidates may be proposed at the meeting.

5.1.3. Any casual vacancy in the office of Chairman or Vice-Chairman shall be 
filled at the first ordinary meeting of the Council after such vacancy occurs.

C80  MOTION TO ESTABLISH AN EQUALITY COMMITTEE 

Councillor Light proposed the motion “To establish a committee dedicated to 
positively promoting equality and to ensuring that all Council actions and policies 
not only comply with current legislation but actively foster inclusivity”.  She said a 
committee established to promote these principles would inform decisions which 
affected groups disproportionately such as women, or those living in poverty or 
isolation.  A committee was needed as existing committees were unable to deal 
with equalities issues fully, and consideration by a working group or Scrutiny 

Page 19



Committee was not enough.  This committee should be balanced, and should 
include representatives drawn from the community.  

Councillor S Barker said the issue was more wide-ranging than simply equality, 
and to deal with it via a committee would confine rather than restrict the need to 
be responsible for these principles.  She proposed amending the motion, to read 
as follows:  

“This Council continues to be committed to positively promoting equality and to 
ensuring that all Council actions and policies not only comply with current 
legislation but actively foster inclusivity.  

This Council calls on the Cabinet Member for Equality to bring a report on this 
important matter back to Full Council following the Internal Audit of Equalities 
and Diversity later this year, and to then consider how this important requirement 
is monitored.”

Councillor Fairhurst claimed that the amendment was out of order, as its effect 
was to negate the motion.  

The Assistant Director – Legal and Governance said an amendment negating 
the motion was, in effect, inserting the word “not” in circumstances where voting 
against the motion would effectively achieve the same result.   This amendment 
did not negate the motion, as it was relevant to the motion and proposed an 
alternative course of action. 

The Chairman said the legal advice was clear.  

Councillor Rolfe seconded the amendment, which was then debated.  

Councillor Ranger said another committee was not necessary, as all decisions 
were taken through the appropriate decision-making process, and if there were 
any concern about inequality, could be referred to the Scrutiny Committee.  

Councillor Dean said the amendment did not negate the proposal.  There might 
be a role for the Scrutiny Committee in considering how to address equalities 
matters. 

Councillor Asker said it was disappointing that the opportunity had not been 
taken earlier to bring this item forward when the public were present.  She could 
not support the amendment because the public would be disappointed in that 
outcome.

The Chairman said he had noted that request but the budget was the most 
important item of business at this meeting.

Councillor Jones said it would have been beneficial to have engaged the 
Council’s own audit committee to look at this item, but consideration by an 
external body would provide greater confidence.  

Page 20



Councillor Hicks said he had been a councillor for many years and considered 
equality had been dealt with very effectively.  He could see no benefit to 
appointing a new committee.  The change of governance from committees to 
Cabinet was meant to reduce the number of committees, partly because of cost.  
There was no case for another committee.  

Councillor Lodge said he regretted the fact the public had departed.  He referred 
to Councillor Fairhurst's legal view that the amendment negated the motion.  

Councillor Loughlin said that as a woman she did not feel subjected to unequal 
treatment by this Council, which also had a female Chief Executive.  She did not 
agree with Councillor Jones’ suggestion that an independent assessment of 
equality be undertaken, as this would cost money.  Regarding Councillor Lodge’s 
complaint that the public had departed, this meeting was being broadcast live 
and was recorded so the public could still listen to the debate.  

Councillor Foley said he supported the original motion because it gave stronger 
commitment to the direction of travel.  

Councillor Hargreaves said in practical terms, Councillor S Barker had said the 
report could be considered by Scrutiny Committee or Governance, Audit and 
Performance Committee.  At its last meeting of the latter, the business 
considered had been extensive.  Sufficient time was not available for the 
Committee to take on the additional task of considering equalities in the 
necessary depth.  

The Chairman said any such report would be to Full Council.  

Councillor Fairhurst said he agreed with the point made by Councillor Foley, and 
it was not the moment to continue with “business as usual”, but to recognise 
times had changed and to act in accordance with the public mood by doing 
something special.  

Councillor Rolfe said this amendment was not about principle but about process.  
It was fortuitous that the Internal Audit team were studying this area, and would 
report in Q1 of 2018/19.  He supported Councillor Jones’ point in that the study 
needed to look at external examples to see what was needed to achieve the best 
quality of diversity and equality.  He also supported the comments of Councillor 
Dean, as it was important to have the right approach.  He took note of the 
workload on Governance, Audit and Performance Committee.  He asked that a 
recorded vote on the amendment be taken. 

Councillor Light said there was a great difference between conducting an audit 
and what she had proposed.  The equalities impact assessment for the budget 
said nothing about the how the budget might affect minorities, whereas a 
committee would drive equality forward.  

The Chairman asked Councillor S Barker whether if the amendment were to be 
passed, and there were to be an audit, she ruled out establishing a committee.  

Page 21



Councillor S Barker said she was open to the outcome of the review, nothing 
was ruled out, and she would bring back a report to Council.  

Councillor Lodge requested a recorded vote on the amendment.

In response to comments as to further changes to the wording of the amended 
motion, Councillor S Barker rejected suggestions that it include reference to 
considering establishment of a committee, and that the wording “is monitored” be 
changed.  

The amended motion being put to a recorded vote, the outcome was as follows: 

For the amended motion:  Councillors G Barker, S Barker, Chambers, Davey, 
Dean, Farthing, Felton, Gordon, Harris, Hicks, Howell, Jones, Loughlin, Mills, 
Oliver, Ranger, Redfern, Rolfe, Ryles, Sell and Wells.  

Against the amended motion:  Councillors Artus, Asker, Fairhurst, Foley, R 
Freeman, Gerard, Hargreaves, LeCount, Lees, Light, Lodge and Morris.  

Abstentions:  none were recorded. 

The amended motion was therefore carried by 21 votes in favour, to 12 against.

The amendment now being the substantive motion, as follows, was put to the 
vote: 

“This Council continues to be committed to positively promoting equality and to 
ensuring that all Council actions and policies not only comply with current 
legislation but actively foster inclusivity.

This Council calls on the Cabinet Member for Equality to bring a report on this 
important matter back to Full Council following the Internal Audit of Equalities 
and Diversity later this  year,  and to then consider how this important 
requirement is monitored.”

The substantive motion was carried, with 21 votes in favour, 5 against and with 3 
abstentions.  

RESOLVED that 

This Council continues to be committed to positively promoting 
equality and to ensuring that all Council actions and policies not 
only comply with current legislation but actively foster inclusivity.

This Council calls on the Cabinet Member for Equality to bring a 
report on this important matter back to Full Council following the 
Internal Audit of Equalities and Diversity later this  year,  and to 
then consider how this important requirement is monitored.

C81  ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 

Page 22



There were no items of urgent business.  

The meeting ended at 10.50pm

PUBLIC SPEAKING – SUMMARIES OF STATEMENTS

Susan Perry spoke in favour of the motion to remove Councillor Knight as 
Chairman of the Standards Committee, raising the following points: 

The radio interviews given by Councillor Knight show a lack of knowledge of 
basic law around sexual harassment which was not commensurate with chairing 
the committee effectively; the absence of a required level of competence for 
members of Standards Committee is of concern; the lack of understanding 
Councillor Knight showed of the principle that people had the right to be able to 
work in a non-threatening environment was greatly concerning. 

Sophie Durlacher spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following 
points: 

Councillor Knight was wrong to have stated that groping was not a crime and 
should have issued a correction after the interview in which she made this point; 
she was free to make the comments she did, but they were not appropriate for 
someone who held public office and in particular the role of chairman of a 
Scrutiny Committee; an unpleasant anonymous letter referred to those objecting 
to her comments as being part of a “new Holocaust”, and being Jewish, Ms 
Durlacher asserted the objections to the statement Councillor Knight had made 
were not fascist, but were made with democratic intention to hold her to account 
for her ill-chosen words. 

Martin Day spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points:

As a business owner and father, it was important to provide an environment for 
young people which did not normalise behaviour which objectified women or 
constituted sexual harassment.  Those working in the hospitality industry were 
often low-paid and had few options for taking on other employment, so did need 
protection in the workplace.  It was no excuse that the Presidents’ Club dinner 
had raised large sums of money for charity. 

Katy Day spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points:

Councillor Knight’s comments appeared to perpetuate the view that female 
employees at events such as the Presidents’ Club dinner should “put up or shut 
up”, and that the wallet justified the behaviour of the guests.  No woman in future 
should feel she had to accept such conditions.  Given the comments she had 
made, how would Councillor Knight be able to deal with a referral to the Scrutiny 
Committee of a complaint of harassment? 

Janina Vigurs spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points:

Page 23



Having experienced sexual harassment, there is a lasting effect on the victim 
and a perpetuation of an environment in which serious sexual crime can be more 
likely, if people are allowed to get away with similar less serious behaviour 
unchallenged. If Councillor Knight has dedicated her efforts to supporting 
women, she should realise the impact on them of such behaviour.  Comments 
indicating that “most” women can deal with this behaviour contribute to the 
reasons why women do not report crime, and fuel a culture of sexual 
harassment. 

Sue Lawson spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points:

Whilst Councillor Knight says the comments were made in her private capacity, 
we live in a social media and celebrity culture that blurs the boundaries; I request 
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee reviews the terms of the code of 
conduct to clarify when it is reasonable to claim a member is speaking in a 
private capacity; Councillor Knight’s incorrect comments about the law of sexual 
harassment were in contrast to those of the Prime Minister and UDC’s Leader, 
and show a lack of judgment.  I ask that the motion be amended to remove 
Councillor Knight as a member of the Standards Committee.  

Justin Rhodes spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points:

Whilst groping does not equate to rape, an event such as the Presidents’ Club 
dinner chips away at the rights of women.  Councillor Knight can speak freely in 
the media but has shown a lack of judgment particularly as Chairman of 
Standards Committee.  She said she spoke as a businesswoman but in the 
world of instant communication on social media it is not feasible to separate 
roles like that. 

Sarah Ellis spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points:

From my work as an educator of young people, I see the damaging results of 
comments such as those made by Councillor Knight, which gave a message of 
inequality between men and women.  Councillor Knight’s comments show lack of 
knowledge and judgment.  There is a responsibility on employers to ensure the 
work environment is not discriminatory, and a vote in supporting her competence 
is complicit in such discrimination.  

Doug Perry spoke against the same motion, raising the following points:

Councillor Knight stood up for what is right, and has, as I have also, been 
attacked many times for views expressed in connection with the local plan.  This 
matter has been handled badly, as was the issue of Council Tax fraud in respect 
of another member, indicating double standards.  This is a witch hunt, Councillor 
Knight has clear redress through freedom of speech under human rights 
legislation.  She has suffered harm from these personal attacks.  Tonight’s 
meeting papers have been corrupted by inclusion of words such as 
“harassment”, which is clearly not relevant, with further corruption by email, to 
predetermine who the nominee for the chairmanship is to be.  This is 
persecution, it is political and shows double standards.  I speak as a resident of 
Saffron Walden and not as a town councillor.  

Page 24



Amelie Gerard spoke in favour of the same motion, raising the following points: 

I am 15.  I am glad to hear that Councillor Knight is considered to be a good 
parish and district councillor. This is about how councillors conduct themselves 
in public, and the confidence placed in them.  Many teenagers have part-time 
jobs, but do the comments Councillor Knight made mean it is right that we have 
to worry about being to blame if someone gropes us at work, or something 
inappropriate should happen?  It is not acceptable.  Please think of young people 
when you cast your vote.  

Angela Foster spoke against the same motion, raising the following points:

Councillor Knight did not condone the behaviour of individuals at the Presidents’ 
Club dinner, and her comments can be interpreted in different ways.  Standards 
Committee should be looking closely at the question of harassment directed at 
Councillor Knight.  She did not say being at the event was “hilarious”, but said 
this about the way in which the journalist went about reporting the event.  
Councillor Knight has been an active employer and supporter of women for 
years.  Shame on those speaking against her.  

Anthony Robertson spoke against the same motion, raising the following points:

As a grandfather and father, and a retired policeman who was involved in victim 
support, I consider the “Yummy Mummies” are not the only people who care 
about women’s rights.  To think that harassment could have happened at one of 
the most secure hotels in London is absurd, and no criminality was found to have 
taken place at the event.  There has been an orchestrated social media 
campaign which was disgraceful.  To demonstrate outside the Council offices 
showed poor judgment.  Councillors should reject the motion. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Council

Title: Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee Annual Report 2017/18

Report 
Author:

Cllr Edward Oliver, Chairman, Governance, 
Audit and Performance Committee 

Date:
Tuesday, 10 April 
2018

Summary

1. There is a requirement under the Council’s Constitution for the Chairman of 
the Committee to report annually to Full Council.

2. This report summarises the key work of the Committee in 2017/18.

Recommendations

3. Council notes the content of the report.

Financial Implications

4. There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Background Papers

5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.

None

Impact 

6.

Communication/Consultation The report has been approved by the 
Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee

Community Safety None

Equalities None

Health and Safety Health and safety information is presented 
twice a year to the committee

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

None

Sustainability None

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



Ward-specific impacts None

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

7. At the beginning of the 2017/18 year, the Performance and Audit Committee 
took on new responsibilities and became the Governance, Audit and 
Performance Committee. It now carries out the work previously done by the 
Constitution Working Group and the Electoral Working Group in addition to 
retaining responsibilities for internal and external audit, performance and risk 
monitoring.

External Audit

8. The Council’s auditors EY gave an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements for 2016/17 for the ninth consecutive year. EY found that the 
Council has proper arrangements in place to secure value for money in its use 
of resources and noted that effective and efficient governance arrangements 
had been put in place with regard to Aspire and its subsidiaries. 

9. The Council published its draft accounts on 31 May 2017. There is a new     
statutory deadline to publish by the end of May which comes into effect in 
2018, so the council achieved the new deadline a year early. Uttlesford was 
subsequently named in the top quartile of public authorities for the timeliness 
and quality of its financial reporting.  A Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) report recognised the Council as one of only 83 public sector 
authorities (out of 497 councils, police and fire services) to have received an 
early unqualified opinion on its 2016/17 accounts by 31 July 2017. Only two 
other councils in Essex, Basildon and Colchester, also managed this 
achievement.

10. The annual audit of the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim was completed by EY,   
which noted in its report that the quality of the work undertaken by Council 
officers was excellent, meaning EY could place full reliance on the Council’s 
work. This resulted in a reduction in auditor fees. This is the first year that the 
Council was not required to repay subsidy grant back to the DWP. Instead, the 
error rate was so low the Council actually gained almost £26,000 in additional 
subsidy payment.

Local Plan Costs

11. Following a request from a Committee Member, the Governance, Audit and 
Performance Committee received a report setting out the Local Plan costs. 
The cost reported for 2016/17 was £810,000.

Page 28



Internal Audit and GDPR

12. During the course of the year the Committee has reviewed the work of Internal 
Audit through quarterly monitoring reports and received the Audit Manager’s 
Annual Report and Opinion. The Committee considered and approved the 
Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 which is published with the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts.

13.  During the 2017/18 year the Committee also received:

 The Internal Audit Strategy and Programme 2017/18 and a later 
revision

 A report on Internal Audit Counter Fraud and Corruption work

 The results of the annual Self-Assessment, through which members 
who attended the session concluded the committee is effectively 
fulfilling its functions in accordance with Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance 

14. The Governance, Audit and Performance Committee has responsibility for    
overseeing the Council’s approach to the General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR) which comes into force in May 2018.

15. The Internal Audit Manager is leading this large project to ensure the Council is 
compliant with the new regulations, which replace the Data Protection Act, and 
committee members have looked at staffing arrangements to deliver the project 
and the implications for public access to data.

Constitutional and Electoral Matters

16.  Members have received several reports during the year on constitutional and 
electoral matters following the decision to transfer these responsibilities to the 
Committee.

17. The Committee debated a report changing the definition of a key decision and 
recommended to Council that the new definition be adopted. This was 
subsequently approved.

18.  It also considered the implications of, and approved the timetable for, a Polling 
District Review and recommended to Council that representations be made to 
the Boundary Commission for England to support revised proposals for the 
Saffron Walden Constituency as part of a Parliamentary Boundary Review. 

Performance and Risk

19. The Committee has continued to undertake detailed quarterly monitoring of the 
Council’s key performance indicators and a further set of supporting 
performance indicators. Service performance has in 2017/18 has remained 
strong.

Page 29



20.The Committee also approved a new Risk Management Policy and Corporate   
Risk Register and continues to monitor the Register on a six-monthly basis.

Procurement and Health and Safety

21. The Committee has continued to receive six-monthly reports on Procurement 
and Health and Safety after deciding last year that it wished to have greater 
oversight of these two areas of work. It noted a positive picture for Health and 
Safety within the Council and received information about a variety of initiatives 
and campaigns during the year. With regard to Procurement, members 
received details of contracts let over £50,000 and instances where exceptions 
to Contract Procedure Rules had been requested. Members also asked 
questions about the Superfast Essex Rural Broadband project.

Ombudsman Annual Review
22. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s annual review letter 

was presented to the Committee for the first time during 2017/18. Previously it 
was reported on a more informal basis through the Members’ Bulletin, but 
officers felt it would be of benefit for members to have a more formal oversight 
of this important document. The Committee noted that one complaint against 
the Council had been upheld during 2016/17, but this had been resolved in the 
form of an apology to the complainant.

Page 30



Committee: Council

Title: Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18

Report 
Author:

Cllr Alan Dean, Chairman, Scrutiny Committee

Date:
Tuesday, 10 April 
2018

Summary

1. There is a requirement under the Council’s Constitution for the Chairman of 
the Committee to report annually to Full Council.

2. The information below summarises the key work of the committee in 2017/18.

Recommendations

3. Council notes the content of the report.

Financial Implications

4. There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Background Papers

5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.

None

Impact 

6.       

Communication/Consultation The report has been approved by the 
Scrutiny Committee

Community Safety None

Equalities None

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

None

Sustainability None

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



Ward-specific impacts None

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation
1. In 2017/18 the Scrutiny Committee has undertaken work looking at a range of 

policies and services along with its role in scrutinising key financial matters 
through the draft budget and Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS).

LCTS

2. The Committee considered the draft scheme proposals for 2018/19 at its 
meeting in June. There was support for the scheme, in particular the 12.5% 
contribution rate which was lower than any other authority in Essex. Members 
also considered the proposed withdrawal of the discretionary Parish and Town 
grant funding and resolved to recommend to Cabinet that it should approve 
the draft proposals.

3. The final scheme was presented to the Scrutiny Committee in November 
along with a report on consultation responses. The committee acknowledged it 
was a difficult subject on which to consult as the scheme was technical in 
nature but noted almost 1,000 residents took part. A motion was put forward to 
maintain the grant to parish and town councils, but this was defeated. The 
committee voted by a majority to endorse its withdrawal.

Budget Scrutiny

4. The Committee reviewed all budget reports prior to their submission to 
Cabinet and Full Council at its meeting in February. Among the matters 
highlighted during these discussions were the £715,000 efficiency savings 
made during the year and the need for further savings in the future, the 
importance of having a robust reserves strategy, the proposed Council tax rise 
of 2.99% and the loss of significant funding from central government.

5. In addition, the Committee considered the Council’s new Investment Strategy 
and may request a further report on this area of work during 2018/19.

Local Plan
6. During the year the Committee was presented with terms of reference to 

formalise its role in the Local Plan process. However, after debate it was 
decided that without the technical expertise provided at the Planning Policy 
Working Group it would be difficult to effectively fulfil this role. As the 
Committee could call in any decisions made by Cabinet during the process if it 
considered there were issues that merited further consideration, the 
Committee voted not to adopt the terms of reference.

Page 32



Matters previously considered by the Scrutiny Committee
7. In 2016/17 the Scrutiny Committee had called in both the Air Quality Action 

Plan and the Street Naming and Numbering Policy. During 2017/18 the 
Committee received revised versions of both these policies.

8. The revised Air Quality Action Plan incorporated recommendations from the 
Scrutiny Committee, including prioritisation of actions, quantification of cost 
and confirmation that the plan met Defra guidelines, and the Committee 
recommended to Cabinet that the revised scheme be adopted. 

9. Similarly, the Committee recommended the adoption of the revised Street 
Naming and Numbering policy and noted the greater say for town and parish 
councils when it came to the street naming process. 

10. In 2016/17, the Scrutiny Committee established a Task and Finish Group to 
look at matters relating to Enforcement. At its June 2017 meeting, a new 
Enforcement Strategy and associated policies were presented prior to the 
approval at Cabinet.

Call In

11.  One Cabinet decision was called in for further consideration during 2017/18. 
The Cabinet decision to approve the disposal of land at De Vigier Avenue, 
Saffron Walden, was called in by three members, with the meeting taking 
place in September.

12.Two public speakers made statements along with one of the two ward 
members, before the committee debated the issue.

13.The committee decided by a majority that no further action be taken on the 
call-in and therefore the Cabinet’s original decision to approve the disposal of 
the and for planning purposes would come into effect.

14.The committee also wished to advise Cabinet of the need to achieve 
maximum benefits from the sale of the land by investing capital receipts and to 
ensure a barrier was maintained between the new development and De Vigier 
Avenue.  

15.Subsequent to the meeting, the Chairman discussed with officers establishing 
a more formal structure for call in meetings, work that will be progressed in 
2018/19.

Centre for Public Scrutiny

16.Towards the end of 2017/18, the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) was 
commissioned to conduct a review of Uttlesford District Council’s Scrutiny 
processes and practices. Face-to-face interviews were held with councillors 
and officers over two days in February, with other interviews carried out over 
the phone. Those interviewed included the Chairman of the Committee and 
Committee Members, Cabinet Members, officers working directly in the 
Scrutiny function, senior officers including the Chief Executive and officers 

Page 33



who had taken reports to the Committee. The review was conducted by Ian 
Parry from the CfPS, who also attended the February Scrutiny Committee 
meeting.

17.At the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 27 March, Mr Parry presented his final 
report and members discussed a series of recommendations. It was noted that 
the Council was among a very few to have undertaken such a piece of work 
and its willingness to take on board constructive criticism and recognise where 
improvement can be made was welcomed.

18.The report highlighted strengths in the Council’s Scrutiny arrangements, 
including good relationships between committee members and officers and 
committee members and executive members, along with the function being 
generally well-organised and welcomed in the Council.

19.Among the areas for improvement were that Scrutiny lacks purpose and 
authority, it does not provide sufficient impact and value in shaping and 
improving decision-making and that Cabinet is not sufficiently visibly 
accountable to Scrutiny.

20.The Committee has requested that Cabinet considers the full report at its 
meeting in May as some of the recommendations will require a closer working 
relationship between Cabinet and Scrutiny.

21.The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny will work with officers to develop 
an action plan to start making recommended improvements.

Page 34



Sky lanterns and helium balloons

This Council notes with concern the risks posed by sky lanterns (often known as” Chinese lanterns”). 
Sky lanterns may look pretty, but the frames can kill or harm farm animals, and the candles are a 
major fire risk to crop fields and buildings. The release of helium balloons has become a significant 
source of littering in the countryside.

Sky lanterns are a fire risk. Once a sky lantern is lit, nobody knows exactly where it will land. Fields of 
standing crops, hay and straw stacks, farm buildings housing animals, thatched roofs plus lots more 
are all at a significant risk of being set alight.

Sky lanterns and helium balloons are a litter nuisance. Farmers and other landowners have to clear 
up the remnants of sky lanterns from their fields. Even bamboo lanterns marked ‘biodegradable’ can 
still take decades to degrade.

Sky lanterns can cause suffering or even kill animals including livestock. The risk is not only fire; sky 
lantern debris can cause immense stress and injury.  Some of the key dangers are:

 Animals eating lantern debris which can cause tears or punctures to internal organs leading 
to a potentially life-threatening situation

 Animals getting splinters in their skin which may cause infection

 Animals becoming trapped or tangled in debris

 Frames of lanterns can contaminate crops which are then unknowingly fed to animals

All released balloons, including those falsely marketed as ‘biodegradable latex’, return to Earth as 
ugly litter. Helium balloons also pose a choking hazard to animals and cause dangerous power 
outages. Balloons are also a waste of Helium, a finite resource.

Sky lanterns pose a significant danger to aviation traffic such as planes and helicopters. There are 
concerns that lanterns can be drawn into aircraft engines and can delay take-off and landing.  In 
addition, lanterns drifting across a night sky are commonly mistaken by the public and coast guards 
for marine distress signals.

The Council further notes that Essex County Fire and Rescue Service has warned people not to use 
sky lanterns after a stray lantern sparked a huge fire in Smethwick in the Midlands and that a ban is 
supported by the RSPCA, Marine Conservation Society, Women’s Food and Farming Union (WFU), 
Soil Association and National Farmers Union (NFU). 

This Council therefore resolves:

1. To support a ban on the release of sky lanterns and helium balloons.
2. To review the terms under which Council land and premises are let to the public with a view 

to prohibiting their release;
3. To write to Town and Parish Councils and event venues in Uttlesford highlighting the risks 

and urging them to introduce voluntary bans;
4. To write to Uttlesford’s MP urging action at a national level. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



5. To display publicity in Council premises raising awareness of the risks posed. 
6. To treat reports of release of sky lanterns and helium balloons as potential littering offences. 

Cllr. Simon Howell
Cllr. Janice Loughlin

Page 36


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Governance, Audit and Performance Committee Annual Report 2017/18
	8 Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18
	9 Notice of motion received from Councillors Howell and Loughlin - Sky Lanterns and Helium Balloons

